LITTLE ELM

LITTLE ELM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Monday, October 11, 2021 - 6:00 p.m.
REGULAR MEETING
100 WEST ELDORADO PARKWAY
TOWN OF LITTLE ELM TOWN CENTER
SECOND FLOOR, GLASS CONFERENCE ROOM

AGENDA

Roll Call and Call to Order of Regular Meeting.
Identification of Quorum and call to order.

Introduction of Jeremy Bolden, new member of the Board of Directors. (Ken Eaken, Board
President)

Discussion and Action to elect Officers for 2021-2022. (Ken Eaken, Board President)

Discussion and Action to Approve Little EIm EDC's Investment Policy for 2021-2022. (Jeff Moore,
EDC Attorney)

Discussion and Action to Approve Minutes from September 20, 2021 Special Meeting. (Jennette
Espinosa, Executive Director)

Discussion and Action to approve the Second Amended and Restated 380 Economic Development
Program and Performance Agreement between GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC, Little EIm
EDC and the Town of Little EIm. (Jennette Espinosa, Executive Director)

Director's Report: Discuss, update, and action regarding project, policies, events, activities and
calendar pertaining to EDC. (Jennette Espinosa, Executive Director).

Executive Closed Session of the Board of Directors.
The Little ElIm EDC will now hold a Closed Session meeting pursuant to the provisions of Chapter
551 of the Texas Government Code in accordance with the authority contained in:

(A) Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate regarding
personal matters to evaluate performance and duties, of a public officer or employee.

1. Jennette Espinosa - EDC Executive Director.



(B) Section 551.087 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate regarding
commercial or financial information that the LE EDC has received from a business prospect,
and or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive with a business re: a project in
the vicinity of Main Street and Eldorado Parkway.

9. Reconvene into Open Session The Little EIm EDC will now reconvene into Regular Session meeting
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code in accordance with the
authority contained in:

(A) Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate regarding
personal matters to evaluate performance and duties, of a public officer or employee.

1. Jennette Espinosa - EDC Executive Director

(B) Section 551.087 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate regarding
commercial or financial information that the LE EDC has received from a business prospect,
and or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive with a business re: a project in
the vicinity of Main Street and Eldorado Parkway.

10. Adjournment.

Respectfully,
Jennette Espinosa
Executive Director

This is to certify that the above notice was posted on www.littleelm.org, Town of Little EIm website, under
Agendas and Minutes prior to 5:00 p.m. this 8th day of October, 2021.


http://www.littleelm.org

LITTLE ELM

Date: 10/11/2021

Agenda Item #: 3.

Department: Economic Development Corporation
Strategic Goal: Maintain operational integrity and viability
Staff Contact: Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director
AGENDA ITEM:

Discussion and Action to elect Officers for 2021-2022. (Ken Eaken, Board President)

DESCRIPTION:

EDC Board of Directors elected officers each year to serve as President, Vice President, Treasurer and

Secretary for one (1) year terms.

BUDGET IMPACT:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends the Board elect new officers for the 2021-2022 year/

Current EDC Officers 2020-2021

Attachments



Current EDC Officers 2020-2021

President: Ken Eaken

Vice President: vacant (formerly Casey Russell)
Secretary: Michel Hambrick

Treasurer: Taylor Girardi

Council Liaison: Michael McClellan



LITTLE ELM

Date: 10/11/2021

Agenda Item #: 4.

Department: Economic Development Corporation
Strategic Goal: Maintain operational integrity and viability
Staff Contact: Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director
AGENDA ITEM:

Discussion and Action to Approve Little EIm EDC's Investment Policy for 2021-2022. (Jeff Moore, EDC
Attorney)

DESCRIPTION:

Annual Review of Investment Policies in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act and the State
approved changes for 2021-2022.

BUDGET IMPACT:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends that the Board approve the Investment Policy as presented

Attachments
Resolution No. 1011202101EDC-Approval of EDC Investment Policy



RESOLUTION NO. 1011202101EDC

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LITTLE ELM
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, A TYPE A ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, APPROVING AN INVESTMENT POLICY OF
LITTLE ELM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, A COPY OF
WHICH IS ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT A; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Little EIm Economic Development Corporation (hereinafter referred to as
the “LE EDC”), is an economic development corporation operating pursuant to Chapter 504 of the
Texas Local Government Code, as amended, and the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act, as
codified in the Texas Business Organizations Code, as amended; and

WHEREAS, Section 2256.003 of the Texas Government Code provides that
governmental bodies subject to the Public Funds Investment Act “may purchase, sell, and invest
its funds and funds under its control in investments authorized under this subchapter in
compliance with investment policies approved by the governing body and according to the
standard of care prescribed by Section 2256.006 of the Texas Government Code”; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the LE EDC find and determine it is in the best
interest of the LE EDC to adopt the Public Funds Investment Act Policy, entitled “Investment
Palicy of the Little EIm Economic Development Corporation,” a copy of which is attached hereto
as Exhibit A, and is incorporated herein for all purposes.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
LITTLE ELM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That the findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this
Resolution as if fully set forth herein.

Section 2.  That the Board of Directors of the Little EIm Economic Development
Corporation does hereby approve the Investment Policy of the Little EIm Economic Development
Corporation, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and is incorporated herein for all
purposes.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective from and after its passage.

DULY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Little EIm Economic Development
Corporation on this the day of , 2021.

Ken Eaken, President
Little EIm Economic Development Corporation



Exhibit A

[Investment Policy
Of
Little EIm Economic Development Corporation]

Page 2
Investment Policy of
Little EIm Economic Development Corporation



INVESTMENT POLICY
OF
LITTLE ELM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION

Approved:




PREFACE

It is the policy of the Little EIm Economic Development Corporation (hereinafter referred
to as the “EDC”) that all available funds within its control shall be invested in conformance with
these legal and administrative guidelines.

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management. A
comprehensive and effective cash management system will be pursued to optimize investment
interest as viable and material revenue to all operating and capital funds. The EDC’s portfolio
shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent with
local, state and federal law.

Earnings from investments will be used in a manner that will best serve the interests of
the EDC.

Section 1. Scope.

The Public Funds Investment Act (“PFIA”), Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code,
prescribes that each local government is to adopt rules governing its investment practices and
to define the authority of the investment officers. This Investment Policy addresses the
methods, procedures, and practices which must be exercised to ensure effective and judicious
fiscal management of funds of the EDC.

This Policy shall apply to the investment and management of all funds of the EDC
under its control, other than those expressly excluded herein or by applicable law or valid
agreement. This Policy shall not supersede the restrictions on investment and use applicable to
any specific fund and, in the event of any conflict between this Policy and the requirements of
any fund subject hereto, the specific requirement applicable to such fund shall be followed as
well as all other provisions of this Policy other than those in conflict.

Section 2. Obijectives.

The EDC’s principal investment objectives in order of priority are:

1. Preservation of capital and the protection of investment principal.

2. Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet anticipated disbursement and cash
flows.

3. Conformance with all Federal regulations, State of Texas statutes and other legal

requirements, including the Articles of Incorporation, and this Policy.

4. Diversification to avoid incurring unreasonable risks regarding investments
owned.
5. Attainment of a market rate of return equal to or higher than the performance

measure established from time to time by the EDC which is commensurate with
the acceptable risk and liquidity objectives of this Policy.



Section 3. Delegation of Authority.

The EDC appoints the EDC’s Treasurer and Accountants as the “Investment Officers” of
the EDC. Direct management responsibility for the investment program of the EDC is delegated
by the EDC’s Board of Directors to the Investment Officers. The Investment Officers’ authority
will at all times be limited by all applicable laws and regulations in effect from time to time, and
this Policy

The Investment Officers may develop and maintain written administrative procedures for
the operation of the investment program consistent with this Policy. The controls shall be
designed to prevent, identify and control losses of public funds arising from deviation from this
Policy, fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent actions by
employees and officers of the EDC. In these procedures, the Investment Officers may delegate
specific portions of the investment management program. Such delegation shall state
specifically the functions such person is authorized to perform.

The EDC shall obtain and maintain, at the expense of the EDC, fidelity bonds for the
Investment Officers. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided
under the terms of this Policy and the internal procedures established by the Investment Officer.
A current list of persons authorized to transact investment business and wire funds on behalf of
the EDC shall be maintained by the Executive Director.

In the discretion of the EDC, and in any event upon the termination or reassignment of
any Investment Officer authorized to conduct transactions for the EDC pursuant to this Policy,
the authority of such person shall be revoked and such revocation of authority shall be
immediately communicated orally and in writing to each and every depository, broker/dealer,
investment pool, investment advisor, custodian, and other agency or EDC with whom the EDC
has any existing or continuing relationship in the management of its investments.

In order to ensure qualified and capable investment management, the Investment Officers
shall, within twelve (12) months after taking office or assuming duties, attend at least one (1)
training session from an independent source approved in this Policy that addresses investment
controls, security risks, strategy risks, market risks, diversification of investment portfolio, and
compliance with the PFIA and contains at least ten (10) hours of instruction. Additionally, the
Investment Officer shall complete not less than eight (8) hours of training every two (2)
year period that begins on the first day of the EDC's fiscal year and consists of the
two (2) consecutive fiscal years after that date, addressing the aforementioned topics. The
Government Finance Officers’ Association of Texas (GFOAT), Government Treasurers’
Organization of Texas (GTOT), Texas Municipal League (TML), University of North
Texas (UNT), North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG), American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), and the Government Finance Officers
Association (GFOA) are approved independent training sources. However, no continuing
investment training is required if the EDC does not invest EDC funds or only deposits EDC
funds in interest-bearing deposit accounts or certificates of deposit.



Section 4. Investment Advisors.

The EDC may, at the recommendation of the Executive Director, select one or more
Investment Advisor(s) to assist the Investment Officers in the management of the EDC’s funds.
The Investment Advisor must be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Investment Advisors Act of 1940 and also be registered with the Texas State Securities
Board as an Investment Advisor. To be eligible for consideration, an Investment Advisor shall
demonstrate knowledge of and experience in the management of public funds. A selected
Investment Advisor shall act solely in an advisor and administrative capacity, within the
guidelines of this Policy and without any discretionary authority to transact business on behalf of
the EDC. The terms and conditions of any Investment Advisor contract shall comply with the
PFIA. A contract with an Investment Adviser may not be for a term longer than two (2) years
and any contract, renewal, or extension must be approved by the EDC Board of Directors and
Town Council.

Section 5. Standard of Care.

The standard of care for the EDC’s investments shall be that such investments shall be
made with judgment and care, under prevailing circumstances, that a person of prudence,
discretion and intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital and the probable income
to be derived.

The overall investment program shall be designed and managed with a degree of
professionalism that is worthy of the public trust. The Investment Officers and any others involved
in the investment process shall recognize that the investment activities of the EDC are a matter of
public record.

An Investment Officer, acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due
diligence and the proper standard of care, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an
individual investment’s credit risk or market price changes, provided that this Policy and the
Investment Officer’s procedures were followed. In determining whether the Investment Officer
exercised a proper standard of care, all investments over which the Officer had responsibility will
be considered rather than a single investment, and whether the investment decision was consistent
with this Policy, as applicable.

Section 6. Authorized Investments.

Subject to any limitations otherwise imposed by applicable law, regulations, bond
indentures, or other agreements, (including but not limited to the PFIA), the following are the only
permitted investments for the EDC’s funds:

A. Direct obligations of the United States government including, but not limited to,
U. S. Treasury Bills, U. S. Treasury Notes, U. S. Treasury Bonds, and U. S.
Treasury STRIPS.

B. Debentures, discount notes or other obligations, guaranteed by, or for which the
credit of any Federal Agency and Instrumentality is pledged for payment



including, but not limited to, Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA),
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), Federal
Agricultural Mortgage Corporation (FRMAC), Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC).
Principal-only and interest-only mortgage backed securities are expressly
prohibited.

Bonds or other interest bearing obligations of which the principal and interest are
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States government. Principal-
only and interest-only mortgage backed securities are expressly prohibited.

Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at a financial institution that
has its main office or a branch office in Texas and a) is guaranteed or insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or other federally sponsored
deposit insurance corporation, or its successor, b) is secured by obligations in a
manner and amount provided by law for deposits of the EDC, or c) is placed
through a broker or depository institution that has its main office or a branch
office in Texas that meets the requirements of the PFIA.

Repurchase agreements structured incompliance with the PFIA, collateralized at a
minimum market value of one hundred two percent (102%) of the dollar value of
the transaction plus accrued interest. A flexible repurchase agreement that allows
for withdrawals as needed to fund project expenditures may be utilized for capital
improvement projects funded by bond proceeds.

The EDC will not enter into repurchase agreements that would result in a reverse
repurchase position for the EDC.

Money Market Mutual Funds meeting each of the following criteria:
1) Regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission;

2 No commission fee shall be charged on purchases or sales of shares (i.e.
“no-load” fund);

3) Have an objective of maintaining a constant daily net asset value of $1.00
per share;

4) Limit assets of the fund to those described as “government” securities; and

(5) Maintain a rating of AAAm or the equivalent by a nationally recognized
rating agency.

State and local government investment pools organized under and meet the
requirements of the PFIA, have been specifically approved by the Investment
Officers, and authorized by the EDC’s Board of Directors, as the case may be.



H. Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies.

I Other obligations, the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally
guaranteed or insured by the State of Texas.

Section 7. Other Investment Guidelines.

The EDC seek active management of its portfolio assets. In the effort of meeting the
objectives of this Policy, the EDC may from time to time sell investments that it owns in order to
better position its portfolio assets. Sales of investments prior to maturity shall be documented and
approved by the Executive Director before such a transaction is consummated. Sales of
investments yielding net proceeds less than ninety-eight percent (98%) of the book value of the
investments must be approved in advance and in writing by the EDC.

Each security investment transaction must be based upon competitive quotations received
from broker/dealers who have been approved by the EDC.

The purchase and sale of all securities shall be on a delivery versus payment or payment
versus delivery basis. In this manner, the EDC will always have possession of either its securities
or its monies.

The EDC is not required to liquidate investments that were authorized at the time of
purchase. However, an investment that requires a minimum credit rating does not qualify as an
Authorized Investment during the period the investment does not have the minimum credit rating.
The Investment Officers shall monitor the rating of each issuer, as applicable, at least quarterly,
and take all prudent measures that are consistent with this Policy to liquidate an investment that
does not have the required minimum rating.

Section 8. Portfolio Maturities.

Maturities shall be selected which provide for both stability of income and reasonable
liquidity. The maximum stated maturity of any non-bond proceed investment is two (2) years. An
investment’s “average life” does not constitute a stated maturity. The weighted average life of all
non-bond proceed investments shall not exceed nine (9) months.

In the case of callable securities, the Investment Officer shall additionally calculate a
weighted average call date. However, at all times the stated final maturity shall be used in
portfolio average life calculations and reported as outlined in this Policy.

Investment of bond proceeds shall be limited to the shorter of the anticipated draw schedule
or “temporary period” as defined by the Internal Revenue Service. Additionally, bond proceeds
may be invested in a singular repurchase agreement, if reductions are allowed from the agreement
without penalty for legitimate bond proceeds expenditures and the final maturity is within the
“temporary period” (this arrangement is commonly referred to as a “flexible repurchase
agreement”).



Section 9. Investment Allocation Limits.

It is the Policy of the EDC to avoid concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific
issue, or a specific class of investments. The asset allocation in the portfolio should, however, be
flexible depending upon the outlook for the economy and the investment market.

The Investment Officers shall evaluate how each investment purchased fits into the EDC’s
overall investment strategies (see Section 15 - Investment Strategy Statement).

Section 10. Broker/Dealers and Other Providers.

The EDC shall maintain a list of broker/dealers which have been approved by the EDC
Board of Directors. Securities and other investments, where applicable, may only be purchased for
the EDC from those authorized broker/dealers.

The Investment Officers shall review each broker/dealer approved under this Section and at
least annually the EDC Council shall re-approve the applicable list.

Broker/dealers, investment pools, and other financial institutions will be selected by the
Investment Officers on the basis of their financial stability, expertise in cash management and their
ability to service the EDC’s and Corporations’ account. Each broker/dealer, investment pool, or
financial institution, shall be required to submit to the EDC (as applicable) information as
requested by the Investment Officers. The Investment Officers shall maintain a file which includes
the most recent information submitted by each firm.

All business organizations eligible to transact investment business with the EDC shall be
presented a written copy of this Policy. The qualified representative of the business organization
seeking to transact investment business with the EDC shall execute a written instrument
substantially to the effect that it has:

1) received and thoroughly reviewed this Policy, and

2) acknowledged that the business organization has implemented reasonable
procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions conducted
between the EDC and the organization that are not authorized by this Policy,
except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an analysis of the
makeup of the EDC’s entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective
investment standards.

The EDC shall not enter into an investment transaction with a business organization prior
to receiving the written instrument described above.



Section 11. Selection of Depositories.

To be eligible for receipt of EDC deposits, financial institutions must be a member of the
FDIC, or other federally sponsored deposit insurance corporation, and meet the minimum
standards established by the Investment Officers. Financial institutions failing to meet the
minimum criteria or, in the judgment of the Investment Officers, no longer offering adequate safety
for the EDC will be removed from the list.

Consistent with the requirements of State law, the EDC requires all financial institution
deposits to be federally insured or collateralized with marketable securities, irrevocable letters of
credit, or in any other manner allowed by State law, if the amount of deposit exceeds federal
insurance levels. Financial institutions serving as depositories will be required to sign a Depository
Agreement with the EDC. The custodial portion of the Depository Agreement shall define the
EDC’s rights to the collateral in case of default, bankruptcy, or closing and shall establish a
perfected security interest in compliance with Federal and State regulations; including:

A. the Agreement must be in writing;

B. the Agreement has to be executed by the Depository and the EDC
contemporaneously with the acquisition of the asset;

C. the Agreement must be approved by the board of directors or the designated
committee of the Depository and a copy of the meeting minutes must be delivered
to the Investment Officers;

D. the Agreement must be continuously, from the time of execution, an official
record of the Depository.

Eligible collateral for financial institution deposits shall include all items allowable with the
PFIA and the Public Funds Collateral Act, subject to prior approval and at the sole discretion of the
Investment Officers.

Section 12. Safekeeping and Custody.

Investment securities purchased for the EDC shall be held in third-party safekeeping, and
all pledged collateral shall be delivered to an independent third-party custodian prior to deposit.
The EDC may designate safekeeping or custodian bank(s). With the exception of federally insured
deposits, in no event will the EDC’s custodial or safekeeping institution also be counterparty
(broker/dealer) to the purchase or sale of those securities, or pledging of that collateral. The EDC
shall execute a written agreement with each bank prior to utilizing the custodian or safekeeping
services. The agreement must provide that the safekeeping or custodian bank will immediately
record the receipt of purchased or pledged securities in its books and promptly issue and deliver a
safekeeping receipt to the EDC showing the receipt and the identification of the security, as well
as the EDC’s perfected interest. The original safekeeping receipt for each transaction including
purchased securities under a repurchase agreement and collateral securing deposits will be
delivered to the Investment Officers.



Only institutions eligible under the Public Funds Collateral Act may be utilized as a
custodian of securities pledged to secure financial institution deposits.

An Investment Officer must approve release of securities held as collateral, in writing, prior
to their removal from the custodial account. A facsimile or email of a written authorization shall
be sufficient if the custodian orally confirms receipt of the transmission, and an exact copy of the
document is retained in the EDC’s files.

Section 13. Recordkeeping and Reporting.

A record shall be maintained of any bids and offerings for investment transactions in order
to ensure that the EDC receives competitive pricing. All transactions shall be documented by the
person authorizing the transaction in a form that shows that person's name, the counterparty to the
transaction, the date, a description of the transaction, and a brief statement of the reason(s) for the
transaction.

Each depository institution of the EDC’s funds shall maintain separate, accurate, and
complete records relating to all deposits, the securities pledged to secure such deposits, and all
transactions relating to the pledged securities. In addition, each depository shall file all reports
required by the Texas State Depository Board. Each depository and custodian shall agree to make
all the records described in this paragraph available to the EDC and its auditors at any reasonable
time.

At least once each quarter, the Investment Officers shall verify that all securities owned by
or pledged to the EDC are held in safekeeping in the safekeeping or custodial bank(s) with proper
documentation. In conjunction with the annual audit, the EDC’s investment program, including
the records of safekeeping, custodian, and depository banks, shall be audited by independent
certified public accountants. This annual audit shall include a compliance audit of the management
and internal controls on investments and adherence to this Policy.

An investment report shall be prepared in compliance with the PFIA at least quarterly by
the Investment Officers that:

a) describes in detail the investment position of the EDC,

b) states the reporting period beginning book and market values, and ending book
and market values for the period of each pooled fund group,

C) states the reporting period ending book and market value for each investment by
asset type and fund type,

d) states the maturity date of each investment,

e) states the fund for which each investment was purchased,



f) states the compliance of the investment portfolio with this Policy and the PFIA,

9) summarizes quarterly transactions, including a detailed list of the gains and losses
recognized, and

h) explains the investment return during the previous quarter and compares the
portfolio's performance to other benchmarks of performance.

This report will be prepared and signed by the EDC’s Investment Officers and provided to
the EDC’s Board of Directors. In conjunction with the annual audit, these reports shall be annually
reviewed by the independent auditor, and the result of that review shall be presented to the EDC’s
Board of Directors, as the case may be.

The Investment Officers shall determine market value of securities owned or pledged as
collateral based on sources independent from the transaction.

All contracted Investment Advisors shall prepare reports as requested by the Investment
Officers.

Section 14. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest.

Investment Officers and employees of the EDC involved in the investment process shall
refrain from personal business activity that involves any of the EDC’s approved custodians,
depositories, broker/dealers, or investment advisors, and shall refrain from investing in any security
issue held by the EDC. Investment Officers and employees of the EDC involved in the investment
process shall not utilize investment advice concerning specific securities or classes of securities
obtained in the transaction of the EDC’s business for personal investment decisions, shall in all
respects subordinate their personal investment transactions to those of the EDC, particularly with
regard to the timing of purchases and sales, and shall keep confidential all investment advice
obtained on behalf of the EDC and all transactions contemplated and completed by the EDC,
except when disclosure is required by law.

All Investment Officers shall file with the Texas Ethics Commission and the EDC’s Board
of Directors a statement disclosing any personal business relationship with any business
organization seeking to sell investments to the EDC or any relationship within the second degree
by affinity or consanguinity to an individual seeking to sell investments to the EDC.

Section 15. Investment Strateqy Statement.

In order to minimize risk of loss due to interest rate fluctuations, investment maturities will
not exceed the anticipated cash flow requirements of the funds. Investment guidelines by fund-
type are as follows:

a. Operating Funds

10



Suitability - Any investment eligible in this Policy is suitable for the Operating
Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will however occur. By managing the weighted
average days to maturity for the Operating Fund portfolio to less than nine (9) months and
restricting the maximum allowable maturity to two years, the price volatility of the overall
portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Investments with active and efficient secondary markets are
necessary in the event of an unanticipated cash requirement.

Liquidity - The Operating Fund requires the greatest short-term liquidity of any of
the fund types. Short-term financial institution deposits, investment pools, and money
market mutual funds provide daily liquidity and may be utilized as a competitive yield
alternative to fixed maturity investments.

Diversification - Investment maturities shall be staggered throughout the budget
and cash flow cycle to provide cash flow based on the anticipated operating needs of the
EDC. Market cycle risk may be reduced by diversifying the appropriate maturity structure
out through two years.

Yield - Attaining a competitive market yield for comparable investment-types and
portfolio restrictions is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling six-
month Treasury Bill portfolio shall be the minimum yield objective.

b. Capital Improvement Funds

Suitability - Any investment eligible in this Policy is suitable for Capital
Improvement Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will however occur. By managing Capital
Improvement Fund's portfolio to not exceed the anticipated expenditure schedule and
restricting the maximum allowable maturity to the I.R.S. “temporary period”, the market
risk of the overall portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Investments with active and efficient secondary markets are
necessary in the event of an unanticipated cash requirement.

Liquidity - The funds used for capital improvement programs have reasonably
predictable draw down schedules, therefore investment maturities shall generally follow the
anticipated cash flow requirements. Short-term financial institution deposits, investment
pools, and money market mutual funds provide readily available funds generally equal to at
least one month's anticipated cash flow needs, or a competitive yield alternative for short
term fixed maturity investments. A singular repurchase agreement may be utilized if

11



disbursements are: allowed in the amount necessary to satisfy any expenditure request; this
investment structure is commonly referred to as a flexible repurchase agreement.

Diversification - Market conditions and the arbitrage regulations influence the
attractiveness of staggering the maturity of fixed rate investments for bond proceeds and
other construction and capital improvement funds. With bond proceeds, if investment rates
exceed the applicable arbitrage yield, the EDC is best served by locking in most
investments. If the arbitrage yield cannot be exceeded, then concurrent market conditions
will determine the attractiveness of diversifying maturities or investing in shorter and larger
lumps. At no time shall the anticipated expenditure schedule be exceeded in an attempt to
bolster yield with any EDC funds.

Yield - Achieving a positive spread to the applicable arbitrage yield is the desired
objective for bond proceeds. Non-bond proceeds construction and capital project funds
will target a rolling portfolio yield of six month Treasury Bills.

C. Fiduciary Funds

Suitability - Any investment eligible in this Policy is suitable for the Fiduciary
Funds.

Safety of Principal - All investments shall be of high quality with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will however occur. By managing the weighted
average days to maturity for the Fiduciary Fund portfolio to less than nine (9) months and
restricting the maximum allowable maturity to two years, the price volatility of the overall
portfolio will be minimized.

Marketability - Investments with active and efficient secondary markets are
necessary in the event of an unanticipated cash requirement.

Liquidity - The Fiduciary Fund requires short-term liquidity. Short-term financial
institution deposits, investment pools, and money market mutual funds provide daily
liquidity and may be utilized as a competitive yield alternative to fixed maturity
investments.

Diversification - Investment maturities shall be staggered throughout the budget
and cash flow cycle to provide cash flow based on the anticipated operating needs of the
EDC. Market cycle risk may be reduced by diversifying the appropriate maturity structure
out through two years.

Yield - Attaining a competitive market yield for comparable investment-types and

portfolio restrictions is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling six-
month Treasury Bill portfolio shall be the minimum yield objective.

12



Section 16. Policy Revisions.

This Policy will be reviewed at least annually by the Investment Officers and the
EDC’s Board of Directors and may be amended as conditions warrant by the EDC’s Board
of Directors. The EDC shall adopt a written instrument by resolution stating that it has
reviewed the Investment Policy and investment strategies and that the written instrument so
adopted shall record any changes made to either the Investment Policy or investment
strategies

Section 17. Effective Date.

This Policy shall become effective from and after its date of passage as provided by law.



LITTLE ELM

Date: 10/11/2021

Agenda Item #: 5.

Department: Economic Development Corporation
Strategic Goal: Maintain operational integrity and viability
Staff Contact: Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director
AGENDA ITEM:

Discussion and Action to Approve Minutes from September 20, 2021 Special Meeting. (Jennette Espinosa,

Executive Director)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Staff recommends approval of the Minutes as presented

Minutes-September 20 2021 Special Meeting

Attachments



DRAFT

LITTLE ELM

MINUTES
LITTLE ELM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
100 W. Eldorado Parkway

SPECIAL MEETING
Monday, SEPTEMBER 20, 2021
6:00 PM

Present: Ken Eaken, President; Taylor Girardi, Treasurer; Michel Hambrick, Secretary; Jack Gregg, Board
Member; Marce E. Ward, Board Member

Absent: Casey Russell, Vice President; Michael McClellan, Council Liaison

Staff Present: Jason Barth, EDC Accountant
Jeff Moore, EDC Attorney
Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director
Natasha Roach, EDC Assistant Director

Roll Call and Call to Order of Special Meeting at 6:05 pm by President, Ken Eaken,
Identification of Quorum and call to order.

Discussion and Action to Approve the Minutes from August 9, 2021, Regular Meeting. (Jennette
Espinosa, Executive Director)

Motion by Treasurer Taylor Girardi, seconded by Board Member Jack Gregg

AYE: President Ken Eaken, Treasurer Taylor Girardi, Secretary Michel Hambrick, Board
Member Jack Gregg, Board Member Marce E. Ward

5 - 0 Passed - Unanimously

Discussion and Action to Approve 3rd Quarter Financials for FY 2020-2021 (Jason Barth, EDC
Accountant)

Motion by Board Member Marce E. Ward, seconded by Board Member Jack Gregg



AYE: President Ken Eaken, Treasurer Taylor Girardi, Secretary Michel Hambrick, Board
Member Jack Gregg, Board Member Marce E. Ward

5 - 0 Passed - Unanimously

Discussion and Action to approve the Performance Agreement between Tiff's Treats, Dallas II, LLC
and Little EIm EDC. (Jennette Espinosa, Executive Director)

Motion by Board Member Marce Ward, seconded by Secretary Michel Hambrick to approve as
revised and provided Developer concurs, or remains as presented.

AYE: President Ken Eaken, Treasurer Taylor Girardi, Secretary Michel Hambrick, Board
Member Jack Gregg, Board Member Marce E. Ward

5 - 0 Passed - Unanimously

Director's Report: Discuss, update, and action regarding project, policies, events, activities and
calendar pertaining to EDC. (Jennette Espinosa, Executive Director). No Action Taken

Executive Closed Session of the Board of Directors.
At 6:49 pm the Little EIm EDC will now hold a Closed Session meeting at pursuant to the provisions
of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code in accordance with the authority contained in:

(A) Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate personal
matters to evaluate performance and duties, of a public officer or employee.

1. Jennette Espinosa - Executive Director

(B) Section 551.087 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate

regarding commercial or financial information that the LE EDC has received from a business
prospect, and or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive with a business
prospect.

1. Project located in the general area of Main St. and Eldorado Pkwy.

Reconvene into Open Session

At 7:01 pm the Little EIm EDC will now reconvene into Regular Session meeting pursuant to the
provisions of Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code in accordance with the authority
contained in:

(A) Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate personal matters to
evaluate performance and duties, of a public officer or employee.

1. Jennette Espinosa - Executive Director

Motion by Secretary Michel Hambrick, seconded by Treasurer Taylor Girardi, to approve the
bonus on terms as discussed in Executive Session.

AYE: President Ken Eaken, Treasurer Taylor Girardi, Secretary Michel Hambrick, Board
Member Jack Gregg, Board Member Marce E. Ward

5 - 0 Passed - Unanimously



1. (B) Section 551.087 of the Texas Government Code to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial
or financial information that the LE EDC has received from a business prospect, and or to
deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive with a business prospect.

1. Project located in the general area of Main St. and Eldorado Pkwy. No Action Taken

8. Adjournment.
Meeting was Adjourned at 7:03 pm.

Respectfully,

Jennette Espinosa, Executive Director

Passed and approved this day of 2020




LITTLE ELM

Date: 10/11/2021

Agenda Item #: 6.

Department: Economic Development Corporation
Strategic Goal: Maintain operational integrity and viability
Staff Contact: Jennette Espinosa, EDC Executive Director
AGENDA ITEM:

Discussion and Action to approve the Second Amended and Restated 380 Economic Development Program
and Performance Agreement between GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC, Little EIm EDC and the Town of
Little Elm. (Jennette Espinosa, Executive Director)

DESCRIPTION:

Joe Goevia is no longer affiliated with Main Marketplace. Due to COVID, the company restructured and the
parent partnership GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC took control of his shares. The original
agreements were written with GCRE/TX Main Marketplace, LLC, (a subsidiary of the parent company) as the
authorized agent. The transfer from the subsidiary to the parent company is required contractually to be
revised in the agreement.

The parent company has requested that the EDC and the Town reinstate the incentives associated with the
Main Marketplace project. Said incentives would be reinstated when the theater obtains a new CO and will
terminate if the theater closes.

BUDGET IMPACT:

From the CO of the theater, until May 31, 2025, the Town of Little EIm and Little ElIm EDC covenants and
agrees to pay GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC, a sum equal to the amount of fifty percent (50%) of
the Sales and Use Tax reported in the Retail Shopping Center Sales Tax Report but excluding the theater, Flix
Brewhouse.They do not get any rebate on their Property Taxes.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends that the EDC Board approve the Amended Agreement as presented.

Attachments
Second Amended and Restated 380 Agreement- TOLE/EDC/LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC



TOWN OF LITTLE ELM, TEXAS,
LITTLE ELM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
AND
GCRE and LCAR MAIN MARKETPLACE LLC

SECOND AMENDMENT
TO
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAM AND PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT

This SECOND AMENDMENT TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM AND PERFORMANCE
AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the “Second Amendment”) is made and entered into by
and between the TOWN OF LITTLE ELM, TEXAS, a Texas home-rule municipality
(hereinafter referred to as the “Town”); LITTLE ELM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, a Texas non-profit corporation (“EDC”); and GCRE and LCAR MAIN
MARKETPLACE LLC, a Texas limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as the
“Developer”):

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on or about April 5, 2016, the Town, EDC, and Developer entered into the
Second Amended and Restated Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Performance
Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Second Amended and Restated Agreement”) regarding
the development of Retail Shopping Center and Multi-Family Development within the Town of
Little Elm, Denton County, Texas; and

WHEREAS, on or about July 15, 2019, the Town, EDC, and Developer entered into a
First Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Chapter 380 Economic Development
Program and Performance Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “First Amendment”) regarding
the development of Retail Shopping Center and Multi-Family Development within the Town of
Little Elm, Denton County, Texas; and

WHEREAS, the Town and Developer now desire to amend Sections 5(a)(1) and Section
6(a) to address the reimbursement of sales tax revenue and repeal Section 5(a)(2) of the Second
Amended and Restated Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Town and EDC consent to the GCRE and LCAR MAIN
MARKETPLACE LLC, a Texas limited liability company, being added as the party to this Second
Amendment; and

WHEREAS, GCRE and LCAR MAIN MARKETPLACE LLC, agrees to assume all
duties and obligations under the Second Amended and Restated Agreement as amended by this
Second Amendment.



NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the agreements contained herein, and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the Town, EDC, and Developer agree as follows:

SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED.

The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into the body of this Second Amendment
and shall be considered part of the mutual covenants, consideration and promises that bind the
parties.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENTS TO SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
AGREEMENT AND FIRST AMENDMENT.

(a) Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement and First Amendment.
That Section 3(b) of the Second Amended and Restated Agreement is hereby amended to
read as follows:

“(b)  Developer. The word “Developer” means GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace,
LLC, a Texas limited liability company, its successors and assigns. For the purposes

of this Agreement, Developer’s address is 630 W. Germantown Pike, Suite 300,
Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462.”

(b) Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement and First Amendment.
That Section 5(a)(1) of the Second Amended and Restated Agreement as amended by the
First Amendment is hereby amended to read as follows:

“(a) Program Grant Payments.

(N Sales Tax. From the Effective Date of this Second Amendment until May
31, 2025, the Town covenants and agrees to pay Developer a sum equal to the
amount of fifty percent (50%) of the Sales and Use Tax reported in the Retail
Shopping Center Sales Tax Report but excluding the Entertainment Center
provided by the Developer to the Town pursuant to Section 4(e) of this
Agreement. Such payments shall be made annually upon reviewing the Retail
Shopping Center Sales Tax Report described in Section 4(e) of this
Agreement, and confirming its accuracy with the State Comptroller, or any
third party sales tax reporting system employed by the Town, including any
audit adjustments and its payment to Town for the applicable year. In the
event the Town, at the Town’s sole discretion determines the Town is
unable to obtain from a third party reliable sales tax information for
whatever reason, then Developer shall approve and consent to the State
Comptroller providing said sales tax information directly to the Town. The
Town covenants and agrees to make the payment to Developer within thirty
(30) days following the receipt of the latter of: (1) the Retail Shopping Center

Page 2 of 7
Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated
Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Performance Agreement
Town of Little Elm, Texas — LEEDC - GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC
10/472021 8:49:53 AM



Sales Tax Report specified in Section 4(e) of this Agreement for each year;
(2) the Sales and Use Tax revenue from the State Comptroller’s office for the
applicable year; and (3) the confidential sales tax report from the State
Comptroller’s office or a report from a third party employed by the Town at
its discretion to determine the applicable sales tax information. Nothing in this
Agreement shall require the Town to make payment from revenue sources
other than from the Sales and Use Tax. The aggregate total of Program Grant
Payments by Town to the Developer pursuant to this Section 5(a)(1) of this
Agreement, when combined with the grants in Section 5(a)(2) and Section
(6)(a), shall not exceed Two Million Six Hundred Thousand and No/100
Dollars ($2,600,000.00).”

(©) Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement and First Amendment.
That Section 5(a)(2) of the Second Amended and Restated Agreement is hereby repealed
in its entirety.

(d) Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Agreement and First Amendment.
That Section 6(a) of the Second Amended and Restated Agreement as amended by the First

Amendment is hereby amended to read as follows:

“(a) Reimbursement for Qualified Expenditures. From the Effective Date of this
Second Amendment until May 31, 2025, the EDC covenants and agrees to pay
Developer a sum equal to the amount of fifty percent (50%) of the Type A Sales and
Use Tax Revenue reported in the Retail Shopping Center Sales Tax Report provided
by the Developer to the EDC pursuant to Section 4(e) of this Agreement. Such
payments shall be made annually upon reviewing the Retail Shopping Center Sales
Tax Report described in Section 4(e) of this Agreement, and confirming its accuracy
with the State Comptroller, or any third party sales tax reporting system employed by
the Town, including any audit adjustments and its payment to Town for the applicable
year. In the event the Town, at the Town’s sole discretion determines the Town is
unable to obtain from a third party reliable sales tax information for whatever
reason, then Developer shall approve and consent to the State Comptroller
providing said sales tax information directly to the Town. The EDC covenants and
agrees to make the payment to Developer within thirty (30) days following the receipt
of the latter of: (1) the Retail Shopping Center Sales Tax Report specified in Section
4(e) of this Agreement for each year; (2) the Type A Sales and Use Tax Revenue
from the State Comptroller’s office for the applicable year; and (3) the confidential
sales tax report from the State Comptroller’s office or a report from a third party
employed by the Town at its discretion to determine the applicable sales tax
information. Nothing in this Agreement shall require the EDC to make payment
from revenue sources other than from the Type A Sales and Use Tax Revenue. The
aggregate total of payments by EDC to the Developer pursuant to this Section 6(a) of
this Agreement shall not exceed the total amount of receipts provided by Developer
to EDC for the Qualified Expenditures made to the Whole Property or, when

Page 3 of 7
Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated
Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Performance Agreement
Town of Little Elm, Texas — LEEDC - GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC
10/4/2021 8:49:53 AM



combined with the grants in Section 5(a)(1) and Section (5)(a)(2), Two Million Six
Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($2,600,000.00).”

SECTION 3. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

()

(8)

(h)

The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this Second Amendment:

Amendments. This Second Amendment constitutes the entire understanding and
agreement of the parties as to the matters set forth in this Amendment. No alteration of or
amendment to this Second Amendment shall be effective unless given in writing and signed
by the party or parties sought to be charged or bound by the alteration or amendment.

Applicable Law and Venue. This Second Amendment shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created
hereunder are performable in Denton County, Texas. Venue for any action arising under
this Second Amendment shall lie in the state district courts of Denton County, Texas.

Assignment. The Parties shall have the right to assign its rights and/or obligations under
this Second Amendment, or any interest herein, without the prior written consent of the
other Parties.

Binding Obligation. This Second Amendment shall become a binding obligation on the
signatories upon execution by all signatories hereto. Town warrants and represents that the
individual executing this Second Amendment on behalf of Town has full authority to
execute this Second Amendment and bind Town to the same. EDC warrants and represents
that the individual executing this Second Amendment on behalf of EDC has full authority
to execute this Second Amendment and bind EDC to the same. Developer warrants and
represents that the individual executing this Second Amendment on Developer’s behalf has
full authority to execute this Second Amendment and bind it to the same.

Caption Headings. Caption headings in this Second Amendment are for convenience
purposes only and are not to be used to interpret or define the provisions of the Second
Amendment.

Counterparts. This Second Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the
same document.

Effective Date. The effective date (the “Effective Date”) of this Second Amendment shall
be the date of the latter to execute this Second Amendment by and between the Town,
EDC, and Developer.

Second Amended and Restated Agreement and First Amendment. All of the terms,
conditions, and obligations of the Second Amended and Restated Agreement, First

Page 4 of 7

Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated

Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Performance Agreement
Town of Little Elm, Texas — LEEDC - GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC
10/4/2021 8:49:53 AM



Amendment, and any other amendments remain in full force and effect except where
specifically modified by this Second Amendment.

@) Severability. The provisions of this Second Amendment are severable. If any paragraph,
section, subdivision, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Second Amendment is for any
reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law or contrary to any
rule or regulation have the force and effect of the law, the remaining portions of the Second
Amendment shall be enforced as if the invalid provision had never been included.

()] Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Second
Amendment.

[The Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank]

Page 5 of 7
Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated
Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Performance Agreement
Town of Little Elm, Texas — LEEDC - GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC
107472021 8:49:53 AM



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be duly
executed.

TOWN:
TOWN OF LITTLE ELM, TEXAS,
A Texas Home-Rule Municipality

By:
Curtis J. Cornelious
Mayor
Date:
ATTEST:
Kate Graham, Acting Town Secretary
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
Robert F. Brown, Town Attorney
EDC:
LITTLE ELM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION,

A Texas non-profit corporation

By:

Ken Eaken, President
Date:

Page 6 of 7
Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated
Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Performance Agreement
Town of Little Elm, Texas — LEEDC - GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC
10/4/2021 8:49:53 AM



DEVELOPER:
GCRE and LCAR MAIN MARKETPLACE

LLC,
A Texas limited liability company

W/ﬁzw

rk Gre
Title: l/a
Date: /0,/ "///70 7’/

Page 7 of 7
Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated
Chapter 380 Economic Development Program and Performance Agreement
Town of Little Elm, Texas — LEEDC - GCRE and LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC
10/4/2021 8:49:53 AM



	Agenda
	AI_522_Election of New Officers 2021 -2022
	       ATT_Current EDC Officers 2020-2021
	AI_523_Resolution No. 1011202101EDC - EDC Investment Policy for 2021-2022
	       ATT_Resolution No. 1011202101EDC-Approval of EDC Investment Policy
	AI_524_Approve Minutes from September 20, 2021 Special Meeting
	       ATT_Minutes-September 20 2021 Special Meeting
	AI_508_Second Amended and Restated 380 Agreement between EDC and Main Marketplace
	       ATT_Second Amended and Restated 380 Agreement- TOLE_EDC_LCAR Main Marketplace, LLC

